M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 08, 2001
9:02 AM

TAPES

SFC-01 # 12, SIDE A

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 9:02 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Donal d 4 son

Senator Loren Lenman

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Al so Attending: ANNALEE MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of Managenent
and Budget, Ofice of the Governor; JAMES KOHN, Director, D vision
of Al aska Longevity Prograns, Departnment of Adm nistration; SHARON
BARTON, Director, Di vi si on of Per sonnel , Depart nent of
Adm ni stration; CHRIS CHRI STENSEN, Staff Counsel, Ofice of the
Adm nistrative Director, Alaska Court System KELLY HEPLER,
Director, Division of Sport Fish, Departnment of Fish and Gane;
JANET KOWALSKI, Director, D vision of Elections, Ofice of the
Li eutenant Governor; PATRICK GALVIN, Director, D vision of
Governnmental Coordi nation, Ofice of the Governor; BARBARA R TCH E,
Deputy Attorney General, Civil Division, Ofice of the Attorney
CGCeneral, Departnent of Law

Attending via Tel econference: From Anchorage: DAN DI CKI NSON,
Director, Tax Division, Departnment of Revenue; BEN STEVENS.

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

SB 73- SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS/ AMEND APPROP.
SB 74- FAST TRACK SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS

The Committee heard testinony fromthe Ofice of Managenent and

SFC- 01 (1) 02/ 08/ 01



Budget , t he Depart nent of Revenue, t he Depart nent of
Adm ni stration, the A aska Court System the Departnent of Fish and
Game, the Ofice of the Governor and the Departnent of Law. The
bill was held in Committee.

#SB73

#SB74
SENATE BI LL NO. 73
"An Act nmaking supplenental appropriations and naking and
anendi ng ot her appropriations; and providing for an effective
date. ™

SENATE BI LL NO. 74
"An Act nmaking supplenental and other appropriations; and
providing for an effective date."

ANNALEE MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget,
Ofice of the Governor acknow edged the shortened tine for the
presentation. She said the requested itens would be addressed in
the sane order they appear in SB 74, with the exception of Section
9.

Section 9 (a)

Depart ment of Revenue

Tax Division budget review unit (BRU)

Expert analysis for a najor North Slope oil and gas property
tax assessnent chall enge.

$1, 276, 000 general funds

DAN DI CKINSON, Director, Tax Division, Departnment of Revenue,
testified via tel econference from Anchorage that the division hoped
that these funds woul d not be needed for this matter. However, he
noted that if there were a challenge to the oil and gas property
tax assessnent of the Prudoe Bay production facility, it would be
necessary to hire an expert to analyze the assessnent. He noted
that the state inposes a 20-mll tax on oil and gas property and
that this facility is the largest in the state. He shared the
previous year's collection on this property as $5.6 mllion. He put
that into perspective as nore than any other city in the state
generates. He detailed the process whereby the assessnent is
determ ned each year.

Senator Leman understood the request, but noted that the stated
purpose was to address "the challenge in the fiscal years ending in
2001 and 2002." He wanted to know how much of the noney is for the
upcom ng fiscal year and if that portion could be included in the

SFC- 01 (2) 02/ 08/ 01



FY 02 budget as opposed to including this itemin the fast track
suppl ement al .

M. Dickinson replied that the value needed to be assessed as of
June 30, 2001. He added the departnent hoped to do much of the work
during that tinme period, hoping the ultimte assessnent would be in
place in time for the 2002 negoti ati ons.

Section 1

Department of Adm nistration

Pi oneer Homes BRU

Nurses' sal aries increased through statew de recl assifications
to address critical staff shortages by bringing conpensation
nore in line with other enployers.

$195, 000 general funds

JAMES KOHN, Director, Division of Alaska Longevity Prograns,
Departnent of Adm nistration, spoke of the difficulty in recruiting
and retaining qualified nursing staff due to the |ower pay the
departnent offers. He stated that there are currently 15 vacancies
in the statewi de Pioneer Hone system He stressed that immedi ate
action was necessary. He told of existing personnel working very
| ong hours to conpensate for the shortfall.

SHARON BARTON, Director, D vision of Personnel, Departnent of
Adm nistration, reiterated the nursing shortage situation and
detailed the union negotiations and the increasing demands for
hi gher conpensation. She stated that other enployers are offering
greater conpensation packages to attract trained nurses. As a
reaction to this, she noted the departnment has instituted a two-
step salary increase that will begin March 1, 2001. She expl ai ned
that this is a result of negotiated contract agreenents that
include a 10.7 percent increase, with 5.7 percent paid at the
signing of the contract, another 2.5 percent to be paid in May 2001
and the final 2.5 percent paid the foll ow ng Muy.

Ms. Barton stressed that accreditation of the Pioneer Hones are at
ri sk because of the lack of ability to recruit and retain nurses.
She added that the exiting Pioneer Home staff is working double
shifts and that many enployees are "reaching their limt." This,
she said, is because of the shortage of on-call nursing staff to
provide relief. She noted that this situation is present at the
Al aska Psychiatric Institute as well.

Co-Chair Donley clarified that the departnent inplenented this pay
i ncrease before having a funding source. He understood that the
departnment is faced with challenges, but questioned why the
contract was signed before there was |egislative review

SFC- 01 (3) 02/ 08/ 01



Ms. Barton responded that not only the Departnent of Adm nistration
is affected by this dilemm, but the Departnent of Health and
Social Services and the Departnment of Corrections also. She
asserted that if the legislature failed to fund this item the
departnment would take other drastic actions in order to neet the
funding requirenment, but warned that the consequences would be
unfavorabl e. She enphasi zed the need for health care in these 24-
hour institutions.

Senator Austerman asked if there are other salary increases
contained in this supplenmental appropriation request. If so, he
wanted to know the total cost.

Ms. McConnell replied that the other affected departnments were able
to shift funding internally, but that the Pioneers Hones do not
have that flexibility. She advised that all of the affected
departnments woul d be subm tting budget anmendnents for FY 02 to fund
t he pay increases.

Senat or Austerman requested information listing the total nunber of
state enpl oyees who are registered nurses, and are receiving the
sal ary i ncreases.

Ms. McConnell stated that information would be provided along with
an overvi ew of the nunmber of currently vacant positions in all the
depart nents.

Senator Austerman asked if the two-percent salary increase has
hel ped reduce the vacanci es.

Ms. Barton responded that because the increase does not go into
effect until March 1, 2001, it is too soon to see any benefits. She
noted that this would nake the state nore conpetitive in the
mar ket pl ace.

Ms. McConnell referred to the backup documentation supporting the
request that gives conparable conpensation packages of other
enpl oyers.

Senator Hoffman referenced this docunentation, which shows a
conparison of the salaries of nurses with a career working for the
state versus those working in the private sector. He wondered how,
even with the increase, the state could begin to conpete.

Ms. Barton admitted it would be difficult. She suggested that the

departnment hoped to attract nurses nore recently certified and with
| ess experience and thus nore |everage for higher conpensation

SFC- 01 (4) 02/ 08/ 01



packages.

Senat or Hof fman stressed that these enpl oyees are providing a key
service to Al aska and that they would be lost to other enployers if
they were not conpetitively conpensated.

Senat or Ward asked the cost differential between nurses enpl oyed by
t he Departnent of Corrections and those the departnent hired on a
contractual basis.

Ms. Barton was unfamliar with the Departnent of Corrections
situation but was able to predict that if the Departnment of Health
and Social Services was forced to use contracted nurses, the total
cost would be a mninumof 25 percent higher than the current cost.

Senat or Ward suggested the Departnent of Administration and the
Department of Health and Social Services consider follow ng the
Department of Corrections' practices in utilizing contracted
nursi ng servi ces.

Senator O son asked how many total nurses are enployed at the
Pi oneer Honmes and also inquired about the next accreditation
revi ew

Ms. Barton was unsure when the next accreditation cycle would
occur. She noted that the vacancy rate for these positions changes
daily and that the nost recent figure she had was 37 vacanci es. She
qualified that this anount only reflects permanent, part-tinme and
full-tinme positions and does not include the difficulties involved
wi th keeping substitute on-call positions filled. She stated that
the Pioneer Hones have approximately 72 positions wth
approximately 15 of those vacant.

Ms. Barton added that the Departnent of Health and Social Services
hol ds approximately 249 positions wth 20 vacant, and the
Department of Corrections has 68 positions with 12 vacanci es. She
noted again that these positions are permanent positions.

Ms. McConnell qualified that these figures account for facilities
across the state, and that certain |ocations nmay experience greater
difficulties than others.

Co-Chair Donl ey requested the average vacancy rate for the |last few
years.

Section 2

Al aska Court System
Trial Courts BRU

SFC- 01 (5) 02/ 08/ 01



Federal granted award for inplenentation of the Anchorage Drug
Court pilot program
$150, 000 federal funds

CHRI'S CHRI STENSEN, Staff Counsel, Ofice of the Admnistrative
Director, Al aska Court System told of the two-year federal grant.
He noted that this request is for authorization from the
| egislature to allow the expenditure of the funds during the
current fiscal year.

Co-Chair Donley asked if any additional state nobney would be
required to garner the federal funds.

M. Christensen answered there would not and shared that it is the
court systenis policy to operate pilot projects using federal
funds, requesting state funds only after the projects have proven
successful .

Section 3

Department of Fish and Gane

Sport Fi sh BRU

Increase of federal authority for stock assessnment and
fisheries managenment projects to provide baseline data and
help mtigate risks to sport fish opportunities resulting from
the federal managenent process.

$898, 700 federal funds

KELLY HEPLER, Director, Division of Sport Fish, Departnment of Fish
and Gane, spoke to the request for receipt authority, assuring that
no general funds were requested. He noted this program has broad
public support and that is the reason the request is being nade. He
spoke to the inportance of retaining a departnent presence in the
federally run subsistence office.

Co- Chair Donley asked if this would inpact the Dingle-Johnson or
t he Pittman- Robi nson federal funding prograns for sport fishing and
sport hunting activities.

M. Hepler stated it woul d not.

Section 4 (a)

O fice of the Governor

El ecti ons BRU

Costs incurred to conply with the Republican Party's request
for the closed statewide primary el ection held in August 2000.
$252, 000

JANET KOMLSKI, Director, Division of Elections, Ofice of the

SFC- 01 (6) 02/ 08/ 01



Li eut enant Governor, shared the Supreme Court ruling that governs
primary el ections was handed down after the previous |egislature
had adj ourned. She stated that Lieutenant CGovernor, Fran U ner and
her sel f had net with nmenbers of t hat | egi slature and
representatives of the state's political parties and that a
concusses was reached in the form of energency regul ati ons.

Ms. Kowal ski warned that the funds requested were al ready expended
using operating budget funds and that if this request was not
granted, the division wuld be forced to cl ose.

Senator Leman asked if there was a |ess expensive way that the
changes coul d have been inpl enent ed.

Ms. Kowal ski agreed that with nore tinme, the cost coul d have been
| ower . She detailed the expenditures involving conputer
reprogramm ng, printing additional ballots, voter notification and
retraini ng workers.

Senator Leman asked if the division was integrating what was
| earned in the event this situation occurred again.

Ms. Kowal ski responded that there are currently no regulations
governing primary elections except those, which were adopted the
previous sumrer. She stated that w thout |egislative intervention,
these regulations would dictate future procedures in the next
primary el ection.

Senat or Hof fman asked if other states hold closed primary el ections
and if those states charge the political party for the subsequent
costs.

Ms. Kowal ski replied that other states had been surveyed and only
South Carolina charges the political parties for the cost of closed
primary el ections. She noted that California, Washington and A aska
were the only states affected by the Suprene Court ruling and each
was considering the best way to address the matter.

Senat or Hof f man suggested that charging the political party hol ding
the closed primary was one way to recoup the cost to the state.

Senat or Ward asked that if the primary election system were to
change fromthe previous election, whether additional costs would
be incurred.

Ms. Kowal ski affirnmed.

Section 4 (b)

SFC- 01 (7) 02/ 08/ 01



O fice of the Governor

Gover nnent al Coor di nati on BRU

Reduce backlog due to large increase in oil and gas permt
coordi nati on workl oad conpared to | ast year

$14, 300 general funds

PATRI CK GALVIN, Director, D vision of Governnmental Coordination

Ofice of the Governor, told the Commttee that the division
i npl ements the Al aska Coastal Managenent Program He expl ained the
requested funds woul d be used to hire an additional Project Review
Coordi nator to review oil and gas projects. He spoke of the
i ncreased nunber of oil and gas projects subject to consistency
review in the last four nonths. As a result, he stated, the
di vi sion has been faced with either falling behind in those project
reviews, which could potentially jeopardize the devel opnent, or
shifting other staff away from different projects, thus delaying
those projects. He shared that representatives of the oil and gas
i ndustry have indicated that the current |evel of applications
woul d remai n the same or increase.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked how many enpl oyees are in the division.

M. Glvin answered there are 27 enployees, of which ten are
proj ect review coordinators.

Co-Chair Donley thought it unusual to have that size of office and
to request an additional position just for the four nonths
remaining in the fiscal year

M. Glvin responded that the intent is to add the position
permanently and that a request to do so is included in the
governor's FY 02 proposed budget. He enphasi zed the need to fund
the position soon because the division is "facing an immedi ate
crunch.” He noted that while the division has been able to absorb
the workload during the last four nonths, other projects have
fall en behi nd.

Ms. McConnell noted that typically this type of request would be
made during the regul ar budget period but because the backlog is so
significant, this supplenmental request was submtted. She added
that the intent is to avoid causing problens to the private sector
because of the del ays.

Senat or Ward asked what other duties the division was falling
behind in as a result of shifting personnel to the oil and gas
proj ects.

M. Glvin explained that the division perforns a consistency

SFC- 01 (8) 02/ 08/ 01



review for any project that requires either state permts fromnore
than one state agency or a federal permt. This, he stated includes
ti mber sal es, dredging projects, etc.

Senator Ward asked if there is any way to neasure the additional
costs to the state as a result of the increased anmount of oil and
gas projects.

M. Galvin offered to provide a breakdown of the tine involved to
do a project review.

Senator Ward wanted this information to also include tine that was
not spent on other projects because of the staff redirection.

Senat or Austerman asked if a fee is charged for these consistency
revi ews.

M. Glvin replied there is none.

Senat or Leman wanted to know how the division expected to hire a
conpetent person in this position, while only offering the salary
of a Range 18A. He questioned the hiring of an entry-level person
to perform conplicated consistency reviews. He relayed the
conplaints of other agencies and their difficulties in conpeting
wWith private industry.

M. Glvin responded that this is the standard pay range of all the
project review coordinators. He hoped that an existing enployee
woul d apply for this position, thus bringing their experience to
the job and in turn, broadening their know edge and exposure to the
oil and gas process.

Senat or Austerman asked if, simlar to the pay raise action taken
by Pioneer Homes, if the position has already been filled.

M. Galvin assured that no one has been hired and that the budget
request was cal cul ated based on a hire date of May 1, 2001

Section 6

Depart ment of Law

Governnent Affairs BRU

Conti nuing costs for prosecution of clains against Bank of
America and other affiliated banks, and for litigation related
to the allocation of public safety resources

$240, 000 general funds

BARBARA RITCH E, Deputy Attorney Ceneral, Gvil Dvision, Ofice of
the Attorney General, Departnent of Law, explained this itemis to

SFC- 01 (9) 02/ 08/ 01



cover costs in two different cases. The first, she stated is the
"Bank of Anerica" case and detailed the anticipated litigation
based on the State of California's finding that this bank, along
with affiliates, failed to return or default to the state,
unclaimed property that would have been passed along to
bondhol ders. As a result, she said the departnment decided to | ook
into the matter in Al aska and determ ned the sane was happening in
this state. She told of the action taken, including a three-day
nmedi ati on hearing, which did not result in a settlenent of the
claim She explained that the statute of limtation on this matter
expires in March 2001 and that the departnment plans to file suit
agai nst the bank before that deadline.

Ms. Ritchie enphasized the anbunt at stake equals tens of mllions
of dollars and that mnmunicipalities are also participating in the
case and would help cover sone of the |egal costs. She explained
sonme of the expenditures include |egal expertise involved in the
California dispute. She noted that $100,000 of the $240,000
requested woul d be applied to this case and would hel p cover filing
costs of the suit, making the required disclosures and for other
costs related to the incitation of the litigation. She stressed
that this case is conplex and that some of the anal ysis dates back
several years.

Ms. Ritchie then addressed the renmai ning $140, 000, woul d be used to
cover costs in a separate suit brought against the state by the
Al aska Intertribal Council challenging the issue of equity of
public safety funding throughout the state. She shared that while a
request for a prelimnary injunction was denied, the rel ease was
the state’s expenditure of $8 nmillion in federal funds. She said
the case is in the discovery phase and that the trial is set to
begin in Cctober 2001, with notions for summary judgnents due
August 1. She noted that attorneys were already di sposing experts
and that rebuttal dispositions would follow She stated the funding
request is for expert costs associated with the departnent's
anal ysis, a historical review of public safety funding in Al aska
and to also cover the costs of reassigned staff that are not
currently paid with general funds, but instead with designated
i nt eragency receipts.

Ms. Ritchie responded to a query by Senator Hoffman stressing that
with litigation it is difficult to predict when costs wll be
incurred. She elaborated that sonetines, additional experts are
required or another round of dispositions are necessary. This she
expl ai ned was the reason the departnent requested that any unused
funds not lapse at the end of the fiscal year, and instead be
avai l abl e during the legislative interim

SFC-01 (10) 02/ 08/ 01



Senat or A son asked about the possibility that the litigation would
end with summary judgnment and t he expenses therefore not incurred.

Ms. Ritchie answered that it was difficult for her to predict,
although it is the departnent's goal to identify the specific
issues that are anenable to resolution short of trial. She
qualified that this would probably not be all of the aspects of the
case, noting the necessity to establish that there are no materia
facts in dispute and that the matter is won based upon |aw. She
stressed that this is a high standard and that preparation for
every case should proceed as if it would go to trial

Senator Leman requested further detail of the nediation session
with the Bank of Anerica.

Ms. Ritchie stated that many parties were involved. She stated that
after three days, an agreenent was not reached, but that there was
clarified focus on the specific areas of dispute. She added that
the nediator is a retired judge who had also presided over
nmediations in the California case and is continuing his assessnent
of the proceedings. Ms. Ritchie did not anticipate that this case
woul d settle before trial

Section 7

Department of Mlitary and Veterans Affairs

O fice of the Conm ssioner BRU

Gant to Special Aynpics to help cover |odging and other
costs of the Wrld Ganes being held in Anchorage in March
$500, 000

BEN STEVENS, representing the Special Jdynpics Wrld Ganes,
testified via testified via tel econference from Anchorage in favor
of the request, which would be used for food and housing of the
athl etes. He noted other support given to the event by the federal
governnment, the mlitary and other parties.

Senat or Leman asked how much the state had already contributed to
t he ganes.

M. Stevens replied that none were supplied to date, but noted a $4
mllion guarantee Alaska Industrial Devel opnent and Export
Aut hority (AIDEA) was passed in 1998 to be granted if necessary.

Senat or Lenman asked if any in-kind service has been provided by the
state.

M. Stevens replied that the state troopers have volunteered their
own tinme as well as menbers of the Al aska National Guard.

SFC-01 (11) 02/ 08/ 01



Senat or Leman asked for accounting of the costs of those in-kind
servi ces.

M. Stevens spoke to the total anmount of cash needed for the ganes
cal cul ated at costing $9 per day per athlete, with approxi mately
2,950 participants.

#
ADJ CQURNIVENT

Co-Chair Donley adjourned the neeting at 9:49 AM

SFC-01 (12) 02/ 08/ 01



